
 
 

 

1st February 2019 

 

 

 

 

Senator The Hon. Zed Seselja 

Assistant Minister for Treasury and Finance 

The Treasury 

Langton Crescent 

PARKES ACT 2600 

 

Dear Senator Seselja 

2019 Pre Budget Submission - Export Market Development Grants programme. 

 

We are an Australian based consulting business that helps Australian exporters. 

The submission is in relation to the funding of the Export Market Development Grants (EMDG) program 
administered under the provisions of the Export Market Development Grants Act 1997 (as amended) 

Background 

The focus of the programme is stated in clause 3 of the Act;- 

“the object of this Act is to bring benefits to Australia by encouraging the creation, development 
and expansion of foreign markets for Australian goods, services, intellectual property and know.” 

The scheme has other parameters that directs the payments to small to medium enterprises and to ensure 
that payments are only made to “export businesses that can return significant net benefit to Australia’ 

The EMDG program has been in existence for over 40 years.  

It effectiveness and efficiency has been reviewed on many occasions. All reviews have found that the 
program is money well spent by government in relation to the multiplier effect of grants payments to 
export sales and hence employment that would not otherwise have happened but for it. 

The scheme administrator is the Australian Trade and Investment Commission (Austrade), a division of 
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT) 

An extract from the Austrade 2018 budget (as part of the DFAT portfolio) is attached. i1 

It records the funding of the program in the forward estimates at $137.9M for years 2018/2019 to 
2021/2022. The funding at $137.9M has been at this level for the last 5 years, with no increase to take 
account for increased demand for the scheme or inflation over that time. 

The grant payment is taxable income for the exporter. 

The program has had capped funding since 1996/1997. Attached2 is a table of the history of the program 
since that date. 

For the last 4 years the demand for the programme has exceeded the supply of money as per budget 
appropriations.  

                                            

1  2018 Budget Forward Estimates to 2021-22  Austrade/DFAT EMDG  Program 1.2 Programmes to promote  Australia’s exports  

2 EMDG Scorecard Since Introduction of Budget cap in 1996/1997 



 

2 

 

Grant payments over $40,000 are rationed over the available funds. For 2016/2017 the m applicable 
payment rate was only 29.24 %, the lowest on record. 

Government describes this position as “over subscription”, exporters describe it as “as a short payment”. 

Exporter’s expectations are not met, in that their final grant payment is not known until some 12 months or 
longer after expenditure has been incurred.  

Additional Funding is required 

The program needs to have additional funding to bring it into balance to ensure all grant entitlements are 
paid in full. 

The benefits of the additional funding are threefold:- 

 Exporter’s expectations will be met. This means they will seek out more customers and market to 

fulfill the maximum extent the object of the program. It will bring back certainty to the program as 

outlined a key focus of the latest review in 20153 

 

 Additional export sales will be generated and hence employment generated in line with previous 

studies of the program. This will create taxable income that would not otherwise not occur but for 

the programme.  

 

 The funding  will continue to be taxable, reducing the next cost to government by 29%  

 

Austrade acts to help Australian exporters make sales overseas and for Australian businesses to attract 
overseas investment.  

The EMDG programme is limited to assisting exporters make sales only, not seek out inwards investment. 

The EMDG programme needs to be brought into “sync” with the aims and objective of Austrade as well as 
current business trends. 

Investment attraction should be made an eligible activity under the EMDG Act. 

Additional Funding Amount (Estimated)  

To fund the program at a level to meet its current demand and allow investment attraction as an eligible 
activity would be in the order of $50M per year 

Funding Sources for the requested increase 

Exporters who have not been paid there full entitlement if the scheme was uncapped have already 
contributed some $100M of savings to help balance the budget in recent years as shown in attachment 2 

The additional funding can come from a number of sources, two are listed below, I am sure there would be 
others as well:- 

 Cut duplication of funding for export development by other government department agencies. 

There are number of other government departments and agencies that have their own export 
programs which in essence are already covered by the EMDG program.  Two examples are as follows:-  

https://www.business.gov.au/assistance/small-and-medium-enterprises-export-hubs 

                                            
3 2014/2015 Review of the Program Certainty and Confidence – report of Michael Lee 

https://www.business.gov.au/assistance/small-and-medium-enterprises-export-hubs


 

3 

 

This funding model is already covered by the Approved Body class of applicant under the EMDG 
program 

http://www.defence.gov.au/Export/Strategy/NewExportSystem.asp 

The grant funding is already covered by the EMDG program. 

 General revenue increases 

Arising from the increased economic activity and employment that the program creates, apart from the 
taxable nature of the grant payments themselves. 

An extra $50M of grant payments has a net cost after tax to government of $35.5M 

The economic activity of the $50M at multiple of 7 times (conservative - based on past reviews into the 
program) created an extra $350M of sales. This produces jobs and economic activity.  

It produces taxable income of that sum and hence potential increased tax receipts of $350M*29% = 
$101.5M, just less than three times the net cost to government after tax as above.   

 

I wish you well in your budget deliberations and a successful outcome for exporters.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Stuart Mitchell 

Mitchell and Co  
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